
fl11age
Salado

MEETING OF THE
SALADO BOARD OF ALDERMEN

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA AND WORKSHOP
AMENDED

6:30 P.M., THURSDAY, OCTOBER 15, 2015
MUNICIPAL BUILDING

301 NORTH STAGECOACH, SALADO, TX
BOARD OF ALDERMEN CHAMBERS

I. CALL TO ORDER

1. Invocation/Moment of Silence

2. Pledge of Allegiance, Texas Pledge of Allegiance

("Honor the Texas flag: I pledge allegiance to thee, Texas, one state under God, one and indivisible.")

II. PROCLAMATIONS / SPECIAL RECOGNITION

None.

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS

3. Citizens who desire to address the Board of Aldermen on any matter may sign up to do so prior to this
meeting. Public comments on issues not listed on the agenda will be received during this portion of the
meeting. Comments related to items on the agenda will be received during consideration of the
individual agenda item. Please limit comments to 3 minutes. No discussion or final action will be taken
by the Board of Aldermen.

IV. REPORTS

Mayor's Report

Alderman Reports:
• Environmental Report - Alderman Dankert and Alderman McDougal
• ETl/Annexation Report - Alderman Dankert and Alderman McDougal
• Ordinance Committee Report - Alderman Coachman and Alderman Williams
• Main Street Report - Mayor Pro Tempore Brown and Alderman Dankert
• Street Improvement Report - Alderman McDougal

Regular Board of Aldermen Meeting, October 15,2015 • Page I of 3



• Stagecoach IWastewater Status Report - Mayor Pro Tempore Brown, Alderman McDougal, and
Administrator Foutz

Financial Report

V. CONSENT AGENDA

All items listed under this section, Consent Agenda, are considered to be routine by the Board of Aldermen
and may be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Board of Aldermen, any item may be
removed from the Consent Agenda at the request of an Alderman and will be considered separately.

4. Consider approving the Consent Agenda item:

a. Minutes, September 24,2015, Special Called Meeting and Workshop
b. Minutes, October 1,2015, Regular Meeting and Workshop
c. Consider an amendment to Resolution R-2015-115 for a Texas Department of Transportation,

Transportation Alternatives Program grant, to develop a combined on-road and off-road landscape
trail facility for pedestrians and bicyclists, and other non-motorized forms of transportation and safety
improvements along College Hill Street, Peddler's Alley, Salado Creek, Center Circle, and Royal
Street.

VI. REGULAR SESSION

5. Discussion and possible action on ResolutionR-2015-128adopting a policy for themanagement of all open
records requests and establishing a policy for costs incurred to respond to public information requests that
require large amounts of personnel time.

VII. WORKSHOP SESSION

6. Discuss a Request for Consent to the Creation of a Municipal Utility District to be named Sanctuary
Municipal Utility District.

7. Discuss Keep Salado Beautiful application for Keep Texas Beautiful-- TxDOT Governor's Community
Achievement Award and grant.

8. Discuss right-of-way entry letters and follow-up process.

9 Discuss and distribute employee evaluation forms and manual.

10.Discuss purchase of land for a Wastewater Treatment Plant.

VIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION

11. Evaluation of the City Administrator as authorized by Texas Government Code §551.074, Personnel
Matters.

Regular Board of Aldermen Meeting, October 15, 2015 • Page 2 of 3



12. Discuss economic development projects as authorized by Texas Government Code § 551.087, Economic
Development.

13. Discuss real estate as authorized by Texas Government Code § 551.072, Deliberations about Real
Property.

IX. REGULAR SESSION

14. Action on the purchase ofland for a Wastewater Treatment Plant.

X. ADJOURN

The Village of Salado reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at any time during the course of this
meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized by Texas Government Code Sections 551.071
(Consultation with Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property), 551.073 (Deliberations about Gifts
and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076 (Deliberations about Security Devices) and 551.087
~(EconomicDevelopment).

This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services
must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact the Village Secretary's office at (254) 947-5060 for further assistance.

Ihereby certify that a true and correct copy of this Notice of Meeting was posted in a public place at 6:40 p.m.
on Friday, October 9, 2015.

Removed from display: _

Regular Board of Aldermen Meeting, October 15,2015 • Page 3 of 3



Village of Salado, Texas
Board of Aldermen

Special Called Meeting and Workshop Meeting
Meeting Minutes

6:30 p.m. Thursday, September 24,2015
Municipal Building, 301 N. Stagecoach Road

Present: Mayor Skip Blancett, Mayor Pro Tempore Fred Brown, Alderman Frank Coachman,
Alderman Amber Dankert, Alderman Michael McDougal, Alderman David Williams.

Others Present: Kim Foutz, Village Administrator; Lyndsey Barrett, Municipal Court Clerk;
Chrissy Lee, Code Enforcement Clerk; Mary Ann Ray, Village Secretary.

I. Call to Order.

Mayor Blancett called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

I. The Mayor opened the meeting with prayer.
2. The Mayor led the Pledge of Allegiance and the Texas Pledge of Allegiance.

He thanked the Rotary Club for the canopy over the playground at Pace Park.

II. Consent Agenda.

3. Exception to Ordinance 2007-03, Section 4B, to allow for possession and use of alcohol in
Pace Park for the 54th Annual Gathering of the Scottish Clans and Highland Games,
subject to the alcohol being served by a TABC-licensed vendor.

Alderman McDougal made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.
Alderman Dankert seconded. The motion carried unanimously.

III. Regular Session.

4. Discussion and possible action on final changes to the proposed Fiscal Year 2015-2016
Budget, including but not limited to adding $50,000 to the Hotel/Motel Operational Fund
from the Hotel/Motel Reserve Fund for Public Relations/Advertising and $5,400 for visitor
restrooms.

Mayor Pro Tempore Brown made the motion to approve thefinal changes as presented.
Alderman McDougal seconded. The motion carried unanimously.

5. Presentation, discussion, and possible action on:
(A) Ordinance 2015.10, adopting the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Annual Budget beginning

October I, 2015 and ending September 30,2016.



A motion was made by Alderman McDougal to amend then budget to include $10,000 to
start a program to control the deer overpopulation in the Village. Mayor Pro Tempore
Brown seconded. The motion carried unanimously.

Alderman Coachman made a motion to approve the FY 2015-2016 Budget as amended on
September 24,2015. Alderman Dankert seconded. The vote is hereby recorded:

Mayor Pro Tempore Brown: Aye
Alderman Coachman Aye
Alderman Dankert Aye
Alderman McDougal Aye
Alderman Williams Aye

(B) Ratifying the ad valorem property tax revenue increase reflected in the adopted
2015-2016 Annual Budget. This budget will raise more total property taxes than last
year's budget by $247,806.44 (78.69%) and of that amount, $5,970.65 is tax revenue
to be raised from new property added to the tax roll this year.

Alderman Coachman made a motion to ratify the tax rate. Alderman McDougal seconded.
The motion carried unanimously.

6. Presentation, discussion, and possible action on Ordinance 2015.11, levying taxes and
setting property (ad valorem) tax rate; approving the Fiscal Year 2015-2016 ad valorem
tax rate and levy of $0.3395 per one hundred dollars ($100) of assessed valuation of all
taxable property within the corporate limits of the Village; providing for an exemption on
residence homesteads; providing for exemptions for individuals who are disabled or 65
years of age or older.

Mayor Pro Tempore Brown made a motion to approve the ad valorem tax rate as
presented. Alderman Dankert seconded. The vote is hereby recorded:

Mayor Pro Tempore Brown: Aye
Alderman Coachman Aye
Alderman Dankert Aye
Alderman McDougal Aye
Alderman Williams Aye

7. Discuss and consider action on the following proposed agreements related to the Sanctuary
Community development project:

a. Donation Agreement between the Village of Salado and Billie Hanks, Jr., and
Salado Utility Company, Inc., for the donation of six acres of land and Water
Quality Permit No. WQ0014898001;

b. Wastewater Service Agreement between the Village of Salado and Sanctuary
Development Company, LLC, for the funding and constructing of improvements
to the Village's wastewater collection, pumping, treatment, and disposal system,



and the terms and conditions for retail wastewater services to the proposed 297-
acre development to be constructed by Sanctuary Development Co.; and

c. Development Agreement between the Village of Salado and Sanctuary
Development Company, LLC, for the terms and conditions of economic
development incentives related to the proposed 297-acre development to be
constructed by Sanctuary Development Co.

Alderman Coachman made a motion to open this item for discussion only. Mayor Pro
TemporeBrown seconded. The motion carried unanimously.

Alderman Coachman gave a lengthy report on his discussions with Sanctuary CEO Robert
Sulaski. He reported that many of the Village's issues with the wastewater agreement were
resolved, but Sanctuary still wants to retain the effluent and 80-percent tax abatements for
45 years.

Mayor Pro Tempore Brown made a motion to move toward acquisition of eight acres of
land on the west side of Interstate 35. Alderman Coachman seconded. After more
discussion, the motion carried unanimously.

There was continued discussion following the vote about the acquisition of land,
application for a wastewater permit, and the need to hire an engineer for the Village to
move forward on its own for a wastewater treatment plant.

8. Discuss establishing the format and criteria relating to the annual performance review and
evaluation of the Village Administrator, Kim Foutz.

There was discussion on the format of the evaluation. Each member of the BOA will
complete an evaluation, and Administrator Foutz will complete a self-evaluation. There
was discussion about including evaluations from staff. It was decided that the Village
Administrator evaluation would take place October 15,as the Administrator will have been
on the job for a period of one year as required by her contract.

The Mayor closed the Regular Session at 7:45 p.m. and ordered a 10-minute break.

The Mayor opened the Workshop Session at 7:54 p.m.

9. Discussion on proposed Ordinance 2015.12, Wastewater Ordinance for customers of the
Stagecoach Wastewater Treatment Plant. There was discussion on how metering would
be handled for structures with multiple tenants/residents. It was decided that the Village
Attorney would review the ordinance to ensure that all legal aspects were executed properly
and that this ordinance would be placed on the October 1, 2015, Regular Agenda as an
action item.

10. Discussion on a proposed policy for the management of Open Records Requests.



There was discussion on setting a reasonable limit of staff time that can be spend on
requests for one requestor during a fiscal year without charging that requestor for stafftime.
Sample policies were reviewed. It was decided that Village staff would create a policy for
BOA review by October 5, 2015, that would be on the October 8,2015, Workshop Agenda.

The Mayor closed the Workshop at 8:23 p.m.

Alderman Coachman made a motion to adjourn. Alderman Dankert seconded. TheMayor
asked all Aldermen to standfor the vote.

The Mayor adjourned the meeting at 8:24 p.m.

Skip Blancett

Mary Ann Ray



Village of Salado, Texas
Board of Aldermen

Regular Meeting and Workshop Meeting
Meeting Minutes

6:30 p.m. Thursday, October 1,2015
Municipal Building, 301 N. Stagecoach Road

Present: Mayor Skip Blancett, Mayor Pro Tempore Fred Brown, Alderman Frank Coachman,
Alderman Amber Dankert, Alderman Michael McDougal (arrived at 6:34 p.m.), Alderman David
Williams.

Others Present: Kim Foutz, Village Administrator; Mary Ann Ray, Village Secretary; Jack
Hensley, Chief of Police; Shane Berrier, Chief, Salado Volunteer Fire Department; Chrissy Lee,
Code Enforcement Clerk.

I. Call to Order.

Mayor Skip Blancett called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.

1. He opened the meeting with prayer.

2. He led the Pledge of Allegiance and the Texas Pledge of Allegiance.

II. Reports.

Mayor's Report.
The Mayor reported that the Village picnic is Saturday and all are invited to attend, and
area churches will offer pet blessings. Christmas in October will be October 9-10 at The
Venue, sponsored by the Ladies Auxiliary of the Salado Chamber of Commerce. The
Salado Volunteer Fire Department will conduct its Family Day on October 10, and the
Lions Club will conduct its Senior Games on October 17.

Alderman McDougal arrived.

At the request of the Mayor, Alderman Dankert reported that a town hall meeting about
deer management has been set for 6:30 p.m. Thursday, October 22, 2015. This
informational forum will take the place of the BOA workshop regularly scheduled for that
night. The forum will feature a panel of experts who will conduct a question-and- answer
session for citizens to learn more about how to manage the deer population.

At the request of the Mayor, Alderman McDougal reported that the Texas Department of
Transportation and James Construction Co. are making good progress on Interstate 35 and
expect to be near completion by the end of December.



Police Report.
Chief Hensley reported that 36 citizens responded to the National Takeback Day,
sponsored by the Drug Enforcement Administration, with 63 pounds of expired
pharmaceuticals turned in. The Mayor read seven thank-you notes written to the Salado
Police Department in appreciation of the efforts to direct school traffic. See attached.

Fire Department Report.
Chief Berrier reported that October is Fire Prevention Month and the department will
participate in several events in the Village and county. He reiterated that Station 2 will be
conduct an open house on October 10.The annual Fall Festival will take place October 31.
He reported that the Salado VFD is second on the list for a Forestry Service grant in the
amount of $200,000. The Mayor invited citizens who visit Station No.2 on October 10 to
considering bringing non-perishables to stock the pantry for the firefighters. Chief Berrier
also gave an update on the recent house fire on Royal Street. See attached.

Chamber of Commerce/Tourism Bureau Report.
Administrator Foutz reported that Mary Poche' has been selected as executive director of
the Chamber and Bureau. She currently serves in a similar capacity for the City of
Decatur, Texas. The Supervisory Committee interviewed several candidates for the
position. Ms. Poche' is expected to start in late October or early November. See attached.

Village Administrator's Report.
Administrator Foutz provided a year-end report of her accomplishments and those of her
staff. See attached.

III. Proclamations.

None.

IV. Public Comments.

3. The Mayor opened the floor for comments from citizens who had turned in Comment
Cards.

Merle Stalcup, 2025 Indian Trail, presented the final certificate of inspection for the
playground in Pace Park where the Rotary Club installed a canopy. He also reported that
the Rotary Club will conduct its annual "Pint for Polio" on October 28 featuring Texas
craft beers.

King Copeland, P.O. Box 192165, Dallas, 75219, addressed his concerns about the
Village's proposed agreements with The Sanctuary. He gave a point of order to the
members of the BOA; see attached.



V. Consent Agenda.

4. Consider approving the Consent Agenda items:
a. Minutes, September 15,2015, Special Called Meeting and Workshop
b. Minutes, September 17, 2015, Regular Meeting
c. Consider a Resolution (R-2015-123) adopting an Investment Policy for Fiscal Year

2015-2016 and designating an Investment Officer for Fiscal Year 2015-2016.
d. Consider a Resolution (R-2015-125) to award a depository account(s) and contract

with Horizon Bank and authorizing the Village Investment Officer to establish
account(s).

Alderman McDougal made a motion to remove Item 4dfrom the Consent Agenda
and that the remainder of the ConsentAgenda be approved aspresented. Alderman
Coachman seconded. The motion carried unanimously.

Alderman McDougal made a motion to approve Item 4d on the Consent Agenda.
Mayor Pro tempore Brown seconded. TheMayor opened the itemfor discussion.

Dan Nixon, Village Investment Officer, explained that Horizon Bank offered a bid
for services that was innovative and much more to the Village's financial well
being than First State Bank's bid.

Alderman Dankert calledfor the question. The motion carried unanimously.

VI. Regular Agenda.

5. Discuss and consider action on the following proposed agreements related to the Sanctuary
Community development project:

a. Donation Agreement between the Village of Salado and Billie Hanks, Jr., and
Salado Utility Company, Inc., for the donation of six acres of land and Water
Quality Permit No. WQOO1489800 1;

b. Wastewater Service Agreement between the Village of Salado and Sanctuary
Development Company, LLC, for the funding and constructing of improvements
to the Village's wastewater collection, pumping, treatment, and disposal system,
and the terms and conditions for retail wastewater services to the proposed 297-
acre development to be constructed by Sanctuary Development Co.; and

c. Development Agreement between the Village of Salado and Sanctuary
Development Company, LLC, for the terms and conditions of economic
development incentives related to the proposed 297-acre development to be
constructed by Sanctuary Development Co.

Mayor Blancett opened the floor for public comments.

King Copeland, P.O. Box 192165, Dallas, 75219, expressed concern that agreements with
The Sanctuary do not include assurances the Village needs.



K.D. Hill, 1221 Baines St., addressed her concerns about the ownership of
collection lines for the existing Stagecoach Wastewater Treatment Plant.

Maurice Striegler, 901 Salado Oaks Drive, expressed his concern that the hope of a sewer
plant is Sanctuary's way of getting into the Village's pocketbook. He distributed a
prepared statement to the member of the BOA (see attached) ..

The Mayor closed the floor for public comments.

Alderman Coachman made a motion to bring Items 5 a, b, and c to thefloor for discussion
only. Alderman McDougal seconded. The motion failed by a vote of 1-4 (Mayor Pro
Tempore Brown, Alderman Dankert, Alderman McDougal, and Alderman Williams
dissenting).

Mayor Blancett asked if there were other motions concerning this item.

Alderman Coachman made a motion that Items 5 a, b, and c be remanded to the workshop
agenda under Economic Development. Alderman McDougal seconded. Themotionfailed
by a vote of2-3 (Mayor Pro TemporeBrown, Alderman Dankert, and Alderman Williams
dissenting).

Mayor Pro Tempore Brown made a motion that Items 5 a, b, and c be discussed at once,
then acted upon. Alderman Dankert seconded. The motion carried by a vote of 3-2
(Alderman Coachman and Alderman Williamsdissenting).

There was lengthy discussion about the economic incentives requested by Sanctuary.
Alderman Coachman reported that there will be a committee meeting with Robet Sulaski,
CEO of The Sanctuary Development Co., and others on the Sanctuary team, on October
12, 2015, in Austin. One focus of the meeting will be on fire protection for the
development and what the development will offer to that end. Alderman Coachman
reported that he met with Mr. Sulaski for three hours the previous night to iron out many
of the difficulties between the Village and the development, including reducing the time
commitment for effluent and tax abatements from 45 years to 10 years.

Mayor Pro Tempore Brown made a motion to moveforward on the purchase of 8 acres
and give Sanctuary until October 8, 2015, to agree to the Village's terms on effluent,
Hotel/Motel tax abatement, and property tax abatements. The motionfailed for lack of a
second.

There was more discussion about the negotiations between the Village and Sanctuary.

Alderman Coachman made a motion to add Items 5 a, b, and c to the WorkshopAgenda
for October 8. Themotionfailed for lack of a second.

Mayor Pro Tempore Brown made a motion to give Sanctuary until October 8, 2015, to
agree to the Village's terms on effluent, Hotel/Motel tax abatement, and property tax



abatements. Alderman Coachman asked ifhe would amend his motion to add "in writing".
Mayor Pro Tempore Brown amended the motion to include "in writing ". Alderman
Coachman seconded.

There was lengthy discussion about the value of continuing negotiations with Sanctuary.

Alderman Dankert calledfor the question. The motionfailed by a vote of 1-4 (Mayor Pro
Tempore Brown, Alderman Dankert, Alderman McDougal, and Alderman Williams
dissenting).

Mayor Blancett reported the BOAhas reached a point of indecision. He asked for any other
motions concerning this item.

Alderman Williams made a motion to postpone indefinitely Items 5 a, b, and c, with the
BOA deciding when the items are to be brought back up for discussion. Mayor Pro
Tempore Brown seconded. The motion carried by a vote of 4-0 (Alderman Coachman
abstaining).

6. Hold a public hearing and consider adopting an ordinance (Ordinance 2015.12)
establishing policies, procedures, administration and charges for a Village-owned
wastewater treatment plant (Stagecoach Plant) and system; including establishing
wastewater service rates, connection fees, deposit fees, interest penalties, re-connection
charges, transfer fees, and returned check fees; and adopting general policies and
procedures including application, implementation, billing, and collections of established
fees.

Administrator Foutz explained that some definitions were added to the ordinance. She
showed a PowerPoint reviewing the ordinance.

The Mayor opened the public hearing at 8:29 p.m.

K.D. Hill, 1221 Baines St., again questioned the ownership of the collection lines for the
Stagecoach plant.

Linda Reynolds, 507 Santa Rosa, expressed concern about foreign objects introduced into
the wastewater system.

The Mayor closed the public hearing at 8:40 p.m.

Mayor Pro Tempore Brown made a motion to approve Ordinance 2015.12, establishing
policies, procedures, administration, and charges for a Village-owned wastewater
treatment plant as presented, including the definition of "connection ", "customer ", and
billing by water meter establishment. Alderman Dankert seconded. The motion carried
unanimously.

The Mayor closed the Regular Session at 8:42 p.m. and ordered a 10-minute break.



The Mayor opened the Workshop Session at 8:50 p.m.

7. Presentations by Kasberg, Patrick & Associates regarding process and timeline for
wastewater system improvements and the application for the wastewater Certificate of
Convenience and Necessity for the Public Utilities Commission.

Rick Kasberg of KPA made a presentation to the BOA including a list of tasks starting
when his firmwas awarded the contract for wastewater improvements on August 20, 2015.
Discussion centered on right-of-entry for survey work and right-of-way beneath Main
Street. Mayor Pro Tempore Brown volunteered to talk to the appropriate individuals at
TxDOT to expedite this process. There was discussion about alignment, easement
acquisition and lift stations. Mr. Kasberg indicated that the contract for construction could
be awarded in April 2016. He said a wastewater permit from Texas Commission on
Environmental Quality can take up to 18 months. There was more discussion about the
possibility of the Village purchasing land and building its own wastewater system.

The Mayor closed the Workshop Session at 9:51 p.m. and opened the Executive Session at
9:52 p.m.

The Board emerged from Executive Session at 10:25p.m. The Mayor reported that wastewater
plant sites and land acquisition would be discussed at the BOA's October 8, 2015, Workshop
Meeting.

The Mayor adjourned the meeting at 10:25p.m.

Village of Salado

Skip Blancett, Mayor

Mary Ann Ray, Village Secretary



BOARD OF ALDERMAN
AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM

10/15/15
Item#4C

Consent Agenda
Page 1 of2

DEPTIDIVISION REVIEW: Kim Foutz, Village Administrator

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider an amendment to Resolution R-2015-115 for a Texas Department of
Transportation, Transportation Alternatives Program grant, to develop a combined on-road and off-road landscape
trail facility for pedestrians and bicyclists, and other non-motorized forms of transportation and safety
improvements along College Hill Street, Peddler's Alley, Salado Creek, Center Circle, and Royal Street.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval.

ITEM SUMMARY AND ANALYSIS: OnApril 23, 2015 the BOA approved Resolution R-2015-115approving
an application for grant funds from the Texas Department of Transportation, Transportation Alternatives Program.

Since that time, the TAP Program Evaluation Committee has completed its initial review of all applications. All
rural cities have been afforded the opportunity to provide additional information, not originally requested, by
October 26. Staff is responding to the Committee with supplemental information that will enhance the grant
application. The following clauses have been suggested as additions to the Resolution:

Whereas, the Village of Salado supports funding this project as described in the TAP 2015 Nomination
Form and supplemental information submitted to the department (including the construction budget, the
department's 15% administrative cost, and the required local match); and

Whereas, the Village of Salado is willing to commit to the project's development, implementation,
construction, maintenance, management, and financing; and

Whereas, the Village of Salado is willing and able to enter into an Advanced Funding Agreement with the
department by resolution or ordinance should the project receive TAP funding

The grant will fund a combined on-road and off-road landscaped trail facility with safety improvements for
pedestrians, and bicyclists, and other non-motorized forms of transportation. The project scope includes the
following:

• Construction of an 10' concrete hike and bike trail located in south Salado (see attached); and
• Connects key community venues including historic College Hill, Central Texas Area Museum, shopping

area, tennis courts, Salado Creek and springs, picnic/sitting areas, bed and breakfast, boutique shopping,
and restaurants.

• Provision of landscaping
• Safety improvements - crossings, signage



10/15/15
Item#4C

Consent Agenda
Page 2 of2

The Trails Subcommittee and staff believe the proposed project achieves the following:
• Begins implementation of the Trails Master Plan (Phase I)
• Accomplishes the Comprehensive Plan areas of focus:

~ Transportation: Explore alternatives to the automobile (e.g., hike and bike trails) and identify ways in
which such alternatives can be accommodated within the existing and future transportation system, this
is especially needed in and around Downtown Salado, where the concentrated retail area is located.

~ Establish a trail system that is capable of providing an alternative to the automobile throughout the
Village, but especially in and around Downtown Salado; this should be correlated with the
Transportation Plan.

~ Consideration should be given to connecting neighborhoods with walklbike trails when streets are not
practical.

~ A network of trails and pathways would enable the Village to expand upon several of its major assets,
including Main Street, Salado Creek, and local historical sites, while providing recreation opportunities
for residents and visitors.

~ Increase accessibility to historic places that are significant to Salado's past to broaden the Village's
attractions as a tourism destination.

~ Apply for any applicable grants, such as those available from ISTEA or Texas Parks and Wildlife
Department.

~ Ensure that as the Village experiences growth and development, its existing character and charm is
maintained and enhanced.

FISCAL IMPACT: n/a

ATT ACHMENTS:
• Resolution
• Map of proposed TAP trail alignment

2



llage
Salado

RESOLUTION NO. R-2015-115.01

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE VILLAGE OF
SALADO, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE SUBMISSION OF AN
APPLICATION FOR FUNDING THROUGH THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT
OF TRANSPORTATION, TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES
PROGRAM, TO DEVELOP A COMBINED ON-ROAD AND OFF-ROAD
LANDSCAPE TRAIL FACILITY FOR PEDESTRIANS ANDBICYCLISTS,
AND OTHER NON-MOTORIZED FORMS OF TRANSPORTATION AND
SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS ALONG COLLEGE HILL STREET,
PEDDLER'S ALLEY, SALADO CREEK, CENTER CIRCLE, AND ROYAL
STREET IN THE AMOUNT OF $346,254 WITH $284,603 REIMBURSED
TO THE VILLAGE THROUGH FEDERAL FUNDING; AND PROVIDING
AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE.

WHEREAS, The Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) has announced a
matching funding program entitled "Transportation Alternatives Program;" and

WHEREAS, Eligible project types include, but are not limited to, the construction of on
road and off-road trail facilities for pedestrians, bicyclists, and other non-motorized forms of
transportation, construction of infrastructure-related projects and systems that will provide safe
routes for non-drivers, conversion and use of abandoned railroad corridors for trails for
pedestrians, bicyclists, or other non-motorized transportation users and construction of
infrastructure-related projects to improve the ability of students to walk and bicycle to school; and

WHEREAS, The Trails Subcommittee recommends submission of a landscaped hike and
bike trail and associated safety improvements project originating at College Hill, and running
along Peddler's Alley, Salado Creek, Center Circle, and Royal Street for consideration with a total
estimated construction and TxDOT administration cost of $330,958 of which $295,166 would be
funded by the program; the Village matching funds being 20% ($66,192 less in-kind); and

WHEREAS, If awarded, the Trails Subcommittee believes the proposed project will begin
implementation of Salado's Trails Master Plan, and promote goals established in the Village's
Comprehensive plan to: 1) explore alternatives to the automobile (e.g. hike and bike trails) and
identify ways in which such alternatives can be accommodated within the existing and future
transportation system; 2) explore transportation alternatives to the automobile (e.g., hike and bike
trails) and identify ways in which such alternatives can be accommodated within the existing and
future transportation system, this is especially needed in and around Downtown Salado, where the
concentrated retail area is located; 3) establish a trail system that is capable of providing an
alternative to the automobile throughout the Village, but especially in and around Downtown



Salado; this should be correlated with the Transportation Plan; 4) consideration should be given to
connecting neighborhoods with walklbike trails when streets are not practical; 5) a network of
trails and pathways would enable the Village to expand upon several of its major assets, including
Main Street, Salado Creek, and local historical sites, while providing recreation opportunities for
residents and visitors; 6) increase accessibility to historic places that are significant to Salado's
past to broaden the Village's attractions as a tourism destination; 7) apply for any applicable grants,
such as those available from ISTEA or Texas Parks and Wildlife Department; and 8) ensure that
as the Village experiences growth and development, its existing character and charm is maintained
and enhanced; and

WHEREAS, The deadline for submission is May 4, 2015 and applications will be
evaluated by TxDOT staff and the Transportation Alternatives Program Evaluation Committee,
with recommendations going to the Texas Transportation Commission - notification of award is
expected in the Fall of2015 and construction is anticipated to begin Fall of2016, if awarded; and

WHEREAS, Grant funding program guidelines provide a maximum reimbursement of
80%, with the Village providing a minimum of 20% cash match - if awarded the grant, the Village
will provide a $66,192 less in-kind cash match (20%); and

WHEREAS, Funding for the south Salado hike and bike trail improvements is available
in Account No. 4770; and

iWHEREAS, The Village of Salado supports funding this project as described in
r----~'="'~

the TAP 2015 Nomination Form and supplemental information submitted to the department
(including the construction budget, the dep'artment's 15% administrative cost, and the reguired
local match ; and

WHEREAS, The Village of Salado is willing to commit to the project's develo
..___ ___;;;;im=p'lementation,construction, maintenance, management, and financing; and

WHEREAS, The Village of Salado is willing and able to enter into an advanced funding
..___ __.agreementwith the department by:resolution or ordinance should the roject receive TAP funding;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE
VILLAGE OF SALADO, TEXAS, THAT:

Part 1: The Board of Aldermen authorizes submission of an application for funding through the
Texas Department of Transportation, Transportation Alternatives Program in the amount of
$330,958 with $295,166 reimbursed to the Village through federal funding, to develop a combined
on-road and off-road landscaped trail facility for pedestrians and bicyclists, and other non
motorized forms of transportation and safety improvements.

Part 2: The trail will originate at College Hill Street, and generally run along Peddler's Alley,
Salado Creek, Center Circle, College, and Royal Streets;

Part 3: The Village of Salado will contribute up to $65,000 in local matching funds;

Part 4: The Mayor is authorized to execute any documents, which may be necessary to apply for
this grant, and accept any funds that may be received for this grant.



Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Resolution was
passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of
said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act.

PASSED & APPROVED this, the 15th day of October, 2015, by a vote of

__ (ayes) to __ (nays) to __ (abstentions).

VILLAGE OF SALADO:

Skip Blancett, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Ann Ray, Village Secretary



BOARD OF ALDERMAN
AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM

10/15/15
Item #5

Regular Agenda
Page 1 of 1

DEPT/DIYISION REYIEW: Mary Ann Ray, Village Secretary

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Discussion and possible action on Resolution R-2015-128 adopting a policy for the
management of all open records requests and establishing a policy for costs incurred to respond to public information
requests that require large amounts of personnel time.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval.

ITEM SUMMARY AND ANALYSIS: This item is a follow-up to a workshop item from September 15 and
September 24. A clearly written policy for the management of Open Records Requests is vital for the protection
of the Village's interests as it satisfies requests for public information and management of records. Such a policy
will prevent duplication of effort and records while ensuring that citizens and others who make requests receive the
desired information in a timely, uniform manner and that the provisions of State Law are met.

At the September 15 workshop, an Aldermen requested that staff research whether the time limit of 36 hours per
single requestor during a fiscal year before costs are assessed can be reduced. The 36-hour time limit is established
by Texas Government Code Section 552.275(b) and can only be increased, not reduced.

FISCAL IMPACT: None.

ATTACHMENTS:
• Resolution for Open Records Policy
• Open Records Policy



flllage
Salado

RESOLUTION R-2015-128

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE VILLAGE OF SALADO,
TEXAS, ADOPTING A POLICY FOR THE MANAGEMENT OF ALL OPEN RECORDS
REQUESTS; ESTABLISHING A POLICY FOR COSTS INCURRED TO RESPOND TO
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUESTS THAT REQUIRE LARGE AMOUNTS OF
PERSONNEL TIME; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Texas Public Information Act (the Act) gives the public the right to
request access to government information; and

WHEREAS, all Village departments are involved in the open records process through a
designated Records Management and Open Records Officer (the Village Secretary) and are
required to follow the policies and guidelines specified under the policy; and

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes a governmental body to charge and to require payment
before complyingwith certain requests for production of public information or for copies of public
information; and

WHEREAS, Section 552.275 of the Act authorizes that a governmental body may
establish a reasonable limit on the amount of time personnel are required to spendproducing public
information for inspection or copies for a requestor without receipt of payment for the time
incurred; and

WHEREAS, the Village desires to establish a time limit to compensate for the costs
incurred beyond the time limit; and the Village has established that time limit as 36 hours during
a fiscal year as set forth by Texas Government Code Section 552.275(b);

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF ALDERMEN OF THE
VILLAGE OF SALADO:

SECTION I

Part 1: The Open Records Request Policy is hereby adopted, and shall be effective upon
passage.



Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this
Resolution is passed, was open to the public as required, and that public notice of the time, place,
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act.

SECTION II

Part 3: That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption.

APPROVED AND PASSED on the 15th day of October, 2015, by a vote of
__ ayes, __ nays, and __ abstentions.

VILLAGE OF SALADO, TEXAS

Skip Blancett, Mayor

ATTEST:

Mary Ann Ray, Village Secretary



Open Records Policy

The Village of Salado Open Records Policy provides an orderly approach to managing municipal
open records requests. It is the intent of this Policy to meet the following objectives:

• The protection of the public trust.
• Adherence to state law
• Fulfillment of requests through a uniform and consistent process

The Village Secretary is designated as the Records Management and Open Records Officer for the
Village of Salado with duties and responsibilities as indicated in the provisions of the Texas Local
Government Records Act. All Village departments are involved in fulfillment of open records
requests and are required by Village resolution to follow the policies and guidelines specified
under the policy.

The Village Secretary will maintain and enforce this policy. It shall be the Village Secretary's
responsibility to enforce the policy equally to all requestors except as exempted by the Act. The
Village Secretary is expressly authorized to implement additional policies and procedures relative
to the handling of requests for public information that are not inconsistent with the Public
Information Act and this policy.

The Open Records Policy and related forms are accessible via the Shared drive or from the Village
Secretary's office.

Requestor: A person who submits a written request to inspect records, obtain copies of records, or
both.

Definitions
Public information: Information that is collected, assembled, or maintained under a law or
ordinance or in connection with the transaction of official business of the Village, and/or made or
received by the Village in connection with the transaction of public business, except records that
have been designated confidential by federal, state or other law.

Scan: The conversion of a physical document into electronic data through a device used for that
purpose.

Open Records Policy· Page 1 of 11



The Public Information Act & Open Records

OPEN RECORDS REQUESTS
All information collected, assembled, or maintained by the Village is subject to the Texas Public
Information Act. The Act expressly provides that such information is public, unless it falls within
one of the Act's exceptions. It is important to remember the Village must either release the
information, request an Attorney General decision, provide a written estimate of costs, or provide
written notification of when the records will be provided, on or before the tenth business day
(weekends and holidays excluded) after receiving the request. The Act also requires that readily
available information that is clearly open to the public be provided to the requestor as soon as
possible and not arbitrarily held for ten (10) days.

All requests for information received by the Village of Saladomust be in writing and submitted to
the Village Secretary's Office. Requests should be mailed to P.O. Box 219, Salado, TX 76571,
Attn: Office of the Village Secretary; emailed to vos@saladotx.gov; faxed to 254-947-5061; or
delivered in person to the Village Secretary's Office in the Municipal Building, 301N. Stagecoach
Road. Village employees who receive Open Records Requests should direct the requestors to
submit their requests to the Village Secretary. Requestors are encouraged to utilize forms which
are available by email from the Village Secretary's office and on-line.

After receiving a request for information, the Village Secretary shall contact all departments and/or
members of the Board of Aldermen who may have responsive information. A Staff Response
Form will accompany each request for information and must be completed by the department
and/or BOA member and returned to the Village Secretary whether or not there are responsive
records.

If the request is clearly a matter of public record, every attempt shall be made to provide the
informationwithin a reasonable amount of time. Ifthere is a question as to whether the information
is a matter of public record and should be released, the responder should notify the Village
Secretary as quickly as possible. The Village Secretarywill then consult with the Village Attorney
to determine if the information should be released.

The Act provides an individual with a limited special right of access to information about himself.
The situation may arise when the Village can give information to a requestor without fear that it
must then be released to the general public. This applies only if the sole reason for otherwise
denying access to the general public is to protect the requestor's private interests. Ifthere are other
laws that make the information confidential or laws that do not relate to the requestor's privacy,
the information cannot be released to the requestor. As in every case in which staff believes an
exception applies and information may be withheld, a marked copy of the information should be
provided to the Village Attorney for a preliminary determination as to confidentiality. The Village
Secretary will keep a log of all items routinely requested and released that do not require written
request, and of those items that do require a written request.

Open Records Policy - Page 2 of 11

----------------------- . - - - -



CATEGORIES OF PUBLIC INFORMATION
Section 552.022 of the Public Information Act provides that "without limiting the amount or kind
of information that is public information under the chapter the following categories of information
are public information and not excepted from required disclosure under this chapter unless they
are expressly confidential under other law ... " Section 522.022(a) then lists eighteen (18)
categories of information. Section 522.022(a) is not an exhaustive list of the types of information
subject to the Public Information Act. Rather, it is a list of information that generally may be
withheld only if it is expressly confidential under "other law". Thus, the Act's exceptions to
disclosure generally do not apply to the categories of information contained in Section 522.022.

1. A completed report, audit, evaluation, or investigation made of, for, or by the Village.
2. The name, gender, ethnicity, salary, title, and date of employment of each employee and

officer of the Village.
3. Information in an account, voucher, or contract relating to the receipt or expenditure of

public or other funds by the Village if the information is not otherwise made confidential
by law.

4. The name of each official and the final voting record on all proceedings in the Village.
5. All working papers, research material, and information used to estimate the need for or

expenditure of public funds or taxed by the Village, on completion of the estimate.
6. The name, place of business, and the name ofthe municipality to which local sales and use

taxes are credited, if any, for the named person reporting or paying sales and use taxes
under Chapter 151,Tax Code.

7. A description of the Village's central and field operation, including:
a. The established places at which the public may obtain information, submit

information or requests, or obtain decisions.
b. The employees from whom the public may obtain information, submit information

or request, or obtain decisions.
c. In the case of a uniformed service, the members from whom the public may obtain

information, submit information or requests, or obtain decisions.
d. The methods by which the public may obtain information, submit information or

requests, or obtain decisions.
8. A statement of the general course and method by which the Village's functions are

channeled and determined, including the nature and requirements for all formal and
informal procedures.

9. A rule of procedure, a description of forms available, or the places at which forms may be
obtained, and instructions relating to the scope and content of all papers, reports, or
examinations.

10.A substantive rule of general applicability adopted by the Village as authorized by law, and
a statement of general policy or interpretation of general applicability formulated and
adopted by the Village.

11. Each amendment, revision, or repeal of information described by Subdivision (7)-(10).
12. Final opinions, including concurring and dissenting opinions, and orders issued in the

adjudication of cases, including those before the Village's Boards and Commissions.
13.A policy statement or interpretation that has been adopted by the Village.
14.Administrative staff manuals and instructions to staff that affect a member of the public.
15. Information regarded as open to the public under the Village's policies.

Open Records Policy> Page 3 of 11



16. Information that is in a bill for attorney's fees and that is not privileged under the attorney
client privilege.

17. Information that also is contained in a public court record.
18. A settlement agreement to which the Village is a party.

CATEGORIES OF PUBLIC INFORMATION EXCEPTED FROM PUBLIC
DISCLOSURE
(For a complete listing, see Chapter 552 of the Texas Government Code.)

Section 552.101- Confidential Information
Information considered to be confidential by law, either constitutional, statutory, or by judicial
decision.

Section 552.102 - Personnel Information
Information in a personnel file, the disclosure of which would constitute a clearly unwarranted
invasion of personal privacy. Note, however, that all information in the personnel file of a Village
employee is to be made available to that employee or the employee's designated representative as
public information is made available under the Act. (See Act for exceptions.)

Section 552.103 - Litigation or Settlement Negotiations Involving the State of Political
Subdivision

a. Information: 1)relating to litigation of a civil or criminal nature or settlement negotiations,
to which the state or a political subdivision is or may be a party to or to which an officer
or employee of the state or a political subdivision, as a consequence of the person's office
or employment, is or may be a party; and 2) that the Attorney General or Village Attorney
has determined should be withheld from public inspection.

b. For purposes of this section, the Village is considered to be a party to litigation of a criminal
nature until the applicable statute of limitations has expired or until the defendant has
exhausted all appellate and post-conviction remedies in state and federal court.

c. Information relating to litigation involving the Village or an officer or employee of the
Village is excepted from disclosure under Subsection (a) only if the litigation is pending
or reasonably anticipated on the date that the requestor applies to the officer for public
information for access to or duplication of the information.

Section 552.104 - Information Related to Competition or Bidding
Information that, if released, would give advantage to a competitor or bidder.

Section 552.105 - Information Related to Location or Price of Property
Information relating to:

a. The location of real or personal property for a public purpose prior to public announcement
of the project; or

b. Appraisals or purchase price of real or personal property for a public purpose prior to the
formal award or contracts for the property.

Section 552.106 -- Certain Legislative Documents
A draft or working paper involved in the preparation of proposed legislation.

Open Records Policy· Page 4 of 11



Section 552.107 - Certain Legal Matters
Information:

a. that the Attorney General or Village Attorney is prohibited from disclosing because of a
duty to the client under the Texas Rules of Civil Evidence, the Texas Rules of Criminal
Evidence, or the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct; or

b. which a court by order has prohibited disclosure of.

Section 552.108 - Certain Law Enforcement and Prosecution Records
a. Information held by a law enforcement agency or prosecutor that deals with the detection,

investigation, or prosecution of a crime.
b. An internal record or notation of a law enforcement agency or prosecutor that is maintained

for internal use in matters relating to law enforcement or prosecution.
(See Act for more details on this Section.)

Section 552.109 - Certain Private Communications of an Elected Office Holder
Private correspondence or communications of an elected office holder relating to matters the
disclosure of which would constitute an invasion of privacy.

Section 552.110 - Trade Secrets; Certain Commercial or Financial Information
A trade secret, or commercial or financial information obtained from a person and privileged or
confidential by statute or judicial decision.

552.111- Agency Memoranda
An interagency or intra-agency memorandum or letter that would not be available by law to a party
in litigation with the Village.

Section 552.115 - Birth and Death Records (not currently maintained by Village of Salado)
The section applies to municipalities that keep birth and death records. At this time, the Village of
Salado does not maintain these records.

Open Records Policy - Page 5 of 11

Section 552.116 - Audit Working Papers
An audit working paper of an audit of the state auditor or the auditor of a state agency; an institution
of higher education as defined by Section 61.003, Education Code; a county; or a municipality is
excepted from required public disclosure. If information in an audit working paper also is
maintained in another record, that other record is not excepted from the requirements of Section
552.021 by this section. (See Act for more details).

Section 552.117 - Certain Addresses, Telephone Numbers, Social Security Numbers, and
Personal Family Information
Information that relates to the home address, home telephone number or Social Security number
or that reveals whether the following person has family members:

a. A current or former official or employee of the Village, who elects not to allow public
access to such information as provided by Section 552.024 of the Act: or

b. A peace officer as defined by Article 2.12, Code of Criminal Procedure.



Section 552.119 - Photograph of Peace Officer or Certain Security Guards
a. A photograph that depicts a peace officer as defined by Article 2.12, Code of Criminal

Procedure, the release of which would endanger the life or physical safety of the officer,
unless:

1. The officer is under indictment or charged with an offense by information;
11. The officer is a party in a fire or police civil service hearing or a case in arbitration;

or
111. The photograph is introduced as evidence in a judicial proceeding.

b. A photograph exempt from disclosure under Subsection (a) may be made public only if the
peace officer gives written consent to the disclosure.

Section 552.131- Information Relating to Economic Development Negotiations
a. Economic development negotiations involving a governmental body and a business

prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in or near the
territory of the governmental body and the information relates to:

1. a trade secret of the business prospect; or
11. commercial or financial information for which it is demonstrated based on specific

factual evidence that disclosure would cause substantial competitive harm to the
person from whom the information was obtained.

b. Unless and until an agreement is made with the business prospect, information about a
financial or other incentive being offered to the business prospect by the governmental
body or by another person is excepted.

Section 552.133 - Public Power Utility Competitive Matters
The section applies to municipalities that own an electric or gas utility. At this time, the Villageof
Salado does not own its own electric or gas utility.

Section 552.136 - Confidentiality of Credit Card, Debit Card, Charge Card and Access
Device Numbers
Credit cards, debit cards, charge cards, and access device numbers collected or assembled by a
governmental body are confidential.

Section 552.137 - Confidentiality of a Certain Email Address
An email address of a member of the public that is provided for the purpose of communicating
electronically with a governmental body is confidential and not subject to disclosure under the
Act.

Section 143.089- Texas Local Government Code: Certain Disciplinary Files of Police Officer
and/or Firefighters
Prohibits the release of certain disciplinary files of police and/or firefighters.

Note: This is not a complete list of possible exceptions. For more detailed information, please
see the complete text of the Public Information Act by accessing the Attorney General of Texas'
website at www.oag.state.tx.us

Open Records Policy> Page 6 of 11



OPEN RECORDS PROCEDURES CHECKLIST (Office of the Village Secretary)

1. The employee should direct the requestor to fill out an Open Records Request form, which
is readily available on the Village website and in the lobby of the Municipal Building. The
employee must not complete the form for the requestor unless the requestor is physically
incapable of doing so.

The employee MUST NOT ask the requestor the reason for the request or for what
purpose it is to be used.

Requests submitted via e-mail to the Village Secretary are acceptable and are processed in
the same manner as a request submitted on the official form. At a minimum, the following
information must be provided in the email: 1) name of requestor; 2) mailing address; 3)
telephone number where requestor can be reached during normal business hours; and 4)
description of information sought.

2. The employee should read the request back to the requestor before he or she departs to
ensure the request is legible and specific. If the request is illegible, the employee should
ask the requestor to rewrite the request clearly. If the request is too vague, the employee
should ask the requestor to clarify the request so it will be clearly understood.

3. If the requested information is clearly public information pursuant to the guidelines, the
employee is to collect the copying cost and release the information. However, if the cost
of copies will exceed $40.00, or if labor is charged because the request exceeds 50 pages,
the Village is required by law to submit a cost estimate to the requestor. The requestor
then has ten (lO) business days from the date of the cost estimate to either accept the
charges or modify the request. The request is considered automatically withdrawn if the
requestor fails to respond by the due date. The Village Secretary's Office is responsible
for preparing all cost estimates.

4. If some of the requested information is public information and some may be confidential,
all information must be submitted to the Village Attorney for determination as to whether
the Village will ask for a ruling from the Attorney General. Certain information may be
withheld without the Village Attorney's determination: city and personal credit card
numbers, Social Security numbers, driver's license numbers, personal email addresses, and
certain personal information about an employee that the employee has elected to withhold
from the public should be redacted (blacked out) by each department prior to the release of
the information to the requestor. It is up to the Village Secretary to ensure the redacted
information cannot be read (from the front and back of the page). Black china markers
work very well for this task.

If information specific to an individual employee is requested, the staff member in charge
of Human Resource related issues and records must be contacted to determine if that
employee has elected to withhold certain personal information. All non-confidential
information will be submitted to the requestor, along with a copy of any letters sent to the
Attorney General's Office in response to the request. If an Attorney General ruling is

Open Records Policy - Page 7 of 11



requested, the Village Attorney and the requestor will be notified. Any information that
must be released to the requestor as a result of the Attorney General's decision will be
provided by the Village Attorney to the Village Secretary, who will then forward the
information to the requestor.

5. If requested information is clearly confidential, the person accepting the request must not
refuse to allow the requestor to fill out the Open Records Request form and must not
summarily dismiss the requestor. The person accepting the request must take the request
and inform the requestor that it will be forwarded to the Village Attorney for a preliminary
determination as to confidentiality. The Village Attorney may ask for a ruling from the
Attorney General's Office within ten (lO) business days of receiving the request. The
Attorney General's Office will notify the Village Attorney and the requestor of its decision
in writing. Any information that must be released to the requestor as a result of the
Attorney General's decision will be provided by the Village Attorney to the Village
Secretary, who will then forward the information to the requestor.

OPEN RECORDS REQUEST TRACKING

The Village Secretary will maintain a log to document all requests for records, whether routine or
non-routine. This log also provides a means to document the amount charged and collected.

CHARGES FOR OPEN RECORDS

Service Rendered/Product Charge
Copy charges

Standard-size paper copy $.10 per page
Oversize paper copy (1IxI7, green bar, etc) $.50 per page

Not including maps/photographs
using specialtypaper

Specialty paper (mylar, blueprint, etc.) Actual cost

Other forms of media
Diskette
Magnetic tape
Data cartridge
Tape cartridge
Rewritable CD (CD-RW)

Other forms of media continued

$1.00 each
Actual cost
Actual cost
Actual cost
$1.00 each

Non-rewritable CD (CD-R)
Digital video disc (DVD)
JAZ drive
Other electronic media (flash drives, etc.)
VHS video cassette

$1.00 each
$3.00 each
Actual cost
Actual cost
$1.00 each

Open Records Policy= Page 8 of 11



Audio cassette $1.00 each

Fax charges
Local call
Long-distance call

$.10 per page
$1.00 per page

Labor charges for programming *
For programming personnel
For non-programming personnel
Overhead charge

$28.50 per hour
$15.00 per hour
20% of total labor charge

Microfiche or Microfilm Charges
Paper copy
Fiche or film copy

$.10 per page
Actual cost

Remote Document Retrieval Charge Actual cost

Computer Resource Charges (execution only, no print-out time)
Mainframe $10.00 per CPU minute
Midsize $1.50 per CPU minute
Client Server $2.20 per clock hour
PC or LAN $1.00 per clock hour

Miscellaneous Supplies Actual cost

Postal & Shipping Charges Actual cost

Sales tax No sales tax shall be applied
to copies of public

* Charge only if 50+ pages or if information is not readily available or requestor has amassed
more than 36 hours of municipal personnel time within the current fiscal year (see Requests that
Require Large Amounts of Personnel Time below).

SCANNED DOCUMENT POLICY
The Village has established a policy that ten (10) pages of physical documents which do not exist
in electronic form or which require manual redaction, and which have been requested for delivery
via email, shall be provided to the Requestor for free per month, per requestor. Request responses
of more than ten (10) pages of physical documents will not be scanned for delivery via email. This
policy does not apply to documents that already are in electronic format at the time of the request
or to requestors exempted by the Texas Government Code, Section 552.275.

Costs per page for documents required to be scanned in order to provide by email when
requested

Open Records Policy= Page 9 of 11



Small numbers (10 or fewer pages) of responsive documents that are not available in electronic
form or which require manual redaction can be scanned and sent to requestors via email upon
request without charge.

Note: Employees are not to accept computer disks, CDs, flash drives or other media from
requestors because these devices could subject the Village's computer system to viruses.
Requestors wishing to obtain records on one of the media must pay the cost for the Village to
provide the medium.

REQUESTS THAT REQUIRE LARGE AMOUNTS OF PERSONNEL TIME

Texas Government Code Section 552.275 allows municipalities to set a reasonable limit on the
amount of time that personnel are required to spend producing public information for inspection
or copies to a requestor, without receiving the costs attributable to that personnel time. Section
552.275(b) establishes that the time limit may not be less than 36 hours for a requestor during the
12-month period that corresponds to the fiscal year of the governmental body. The Village
establishes a reasonable limit of 36 hours per requestor during the 12-month period that
corresponded with the Village's fiscal year on the amount of time that personnel of the Village are
required to spend producing public information for inspection by a requestor, or providing copies
of public information to a requestor, without recovering costs attributable to that personnel time.

The Village Secretary shall keep a record of time spent per requestor in a fiscal year.

Each requestor who exceeds the 36-hour time limit in a fiscal year shall pay all costs attributable
to cost of materials, personnel time, and overhead expenses necessary to comply with the request,
even if the requestor intend to only inspect the documents.

Use & Disclosure
The Village uses and discloses identifiable information (such as Social Security numbers,
addresses, telephone numbers, etc.) about customers in defined and responsible ways to carry out
its operations. This section describes how identifiable information about customers may be used
and disclosed.

This policy does not replace or supersede other sections of the Act and does not preclude the
Village from charging labor for a request for copies or a request for inspection for which a charge
is authorized under another section of the Public Information Act. The established limit applies to
all requestors equally except as exempted by the Act.

PRIVACY & CONFIDENTIALITY OF CUSTOMER INFORMATION

The objective of this policy is to establish fair information principles for the Village of Salado in
carrying out its responsibility to respect the privacy and confidentiality of its customers.

Open Records Policy= Page 10 of 11



• Records may be disclosed to affiliates or contractors hired by the Village of Salado to assist
in carrying out operations, such as service, billing, and management functions to include
legal, audit, and collections.

• Customer information may be disclosed to and shared with commercial and consumer
credit reporting agencies for credit-related activities (e.g., the reporting of delinquent or
bad debt).

• Records may be disclosed to government regulators and other government agencies when
authorized by law.

• Records may also be compiled in aggregate form for the Village of Salado management
activities.

• Records may be disclosed when required by law, such as in response to a search warrant,
subpoena, or court order. The Village may use and disclose records for investigations into
employee misconduct or for law enforcement investigations. Disclosures may also be
made when appropriate to protect the Village's legal rights or during emergencies if
physical safety is believed to be at risk. These events are unlikely, but they are possible.
The Village of Salado will take reasonable steps to limit the scope and consequences of
any of these disclosures.

• Records may be shared with other municipalities and utilities under shared service
agreements or to meet operational requirements.

• Records about a customer may be disclosed at the request of or with the permission of the
customer.

• Customer information may be shared with affiliates and partners of the Village that offer
products and services to customers.

• The Village of Salado does not sell, rent, loan, exchange, or otherwise release mailing lists
of telephone lists of customers. The Village does not disclose any information about a
customer to non-affiliated third parties without the prior written consent of the customer.

Disposal of Customer Information
Documents that meet retention guidelines, such as Customer Applications, will be stored within
the Village of Salado prior to their destruction. Any documents that do not meet the criteria for
retention will be shredded or otherwise destroyed by Village personnel in a timely manner.

Responsibility
Any employee, contractor, or agent of the Village who fails to comply with this policy may be
subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment or services, and may
be subject to further legal action.

Open Records Policy s Page 11 of 11


